) Earth Negotiations Bt 1

A Reporting Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotiations

-
Vol. 12 No. 116

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (11ISD)

Friday, 29 October 1999

FCCC COP-5HIGHLIGHTS
THURSDAY, 28 OCTOBER 1999

Delegates met in amorning session of the Subsidiary Body for
Scientific and Technological Advice (SBSTA) to continue consid-
eration of research and systematic observation and the roster of
experts following discussions on technol ogy transfer and devel op-
ment on Wednesday evening. The Joint Working Group (JWG) on
compliance discussed procedures and mechanismsrelating to
compliance under the Kyoto Protocol. Contact groups met to
consider: adverse effects; Annex | communications; capacity
building; land use, land-use change and forestry (LULUCF);
national systems, adjustmentsand guidelines under the Protocol;
non-Annex | communications; and the Protocol mechanisms.

SBSTA

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER: Delegates considered the
report on the meeting of the IPCC and the Montreal Protocol’s
Technical and Economic Assessment Panel on ways and means of
limiting hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs) and perfluorocarbons. The
meeting highlighted, inter alia: the complexity of links between
ozone depletion and climate change mitigation activities; the multi-
plicity of solutionsrequired to addressthese global change issues;
and the desirability of solutionstailored to regional or national
needs.

SWITZERLAND emphasized the need to standardize testing
proceduresfor technologiesin devel oping countries. GREEN-
PEACE called for action to avoid dumping of potentially harmful
technologiesin developing countries. ARGENTINA, supported by
KENYA, the RUSSIAN FEDERATION and POLAND, called for
attention to the medical use of HFCsin metered doseinhalers.
Discussionswill continuein informal consultations.

On coastal adaptation technol ogies, AOSI S noted that financial
and human resource limitations have stifled progressin adaptation
and urged the devel opment of long-term approaches under the
FCCC. He highlighted the potential of the clean development
mechanism (CDM) in thisregard. On other matters, the Secretariat
reported on its cooperative activitiesaimed at improving climate
datafrom reporting systems.

RESEARCH AND SYSTEMATIC OBSERVATION: The
Global Climate Observation System (GCOS) reported on progress
in enhancing global observatory systems and noted that deficien-
ciesarearesult of inadequate equipment, poor infrastructure and
insufficient funding. The Global Oceans Observation System
(GOOS) outlined itswork and stressed the need for better measure-
ment, organization and partnershipsto overcome observation defi-
ciencies. The EU and others supported the GCOS call for more
systematic reporting. JAPAN encouraged GCOS, in cooperation
with the WM O, to monitor the status of implementation with a
view to utilizing recent technologiesto fill the gapsin climate
observing systems. AUSTRALIA called for amorediversified

funding strategy. The GEF pledged additional fundsto build obser-
vational capacity for certain developing countries. Susan Barrell
(Australia) will conduct informal consultationson thisissue.

ROSTER OF EXPERTS: The US said expansion of rosters
should only be donein responseto additional tasks. NEW
ZEALAND supported the Secretariat’s proposal to integrate the
different rosters. Whilethe EU objected, CANADA supported
additional rostersfor inventory reviews.

Following requests by some Parties, the Chair convened a
contact group to consider national systems, adjustments and guide-
lines.

JOINT WORKING GROUP ON COMPLIANCE

The WG on compliance heard four diagrammatic submissions
illustrating acompliance system. The US said that itsdesign for the
compliance systemisfocused on Protocol Article 3 (GHG reduc-
tion and limitation commitments) and providesfor both facilitative
and enforcement functionsto be dealt with "by two different sets of
people." She said the goal of enforcement isto ensure compliance
through binding consequencesthat are known in advance. In
presenting its preliminary views, JAPAN proposed asingle compli-
ance body and outlined stepsranging from assi stance to recommen-
dationsto be exhausted before the entry into force of consequences.
The EU explained that its compliance committee would have a
facilitative branch and an enforcement branch, with apossible
referral from theformer to thelatter. Issueswould be channeled
automatically to the branches. SAMOA stressed two features of the
AOSI S diagram: avoidance of polarization between thefacilitative
and enforcement functions, sincethey overlap, and an eligibility
committee responsi ble for the determination of mechanism eligi-
bility. He added that an ad hoc appeal body would hear quasi-judi-
cia appealsontheimposition of binding penalties.

Onéeligibility to raiseissues, the UK explained that the mere
provision of information would not “trigger” the compliance proce-
dure, but that it would be triggered by whatever causesthe compli-
ance procedureto start considering aclaim. Many del egates agreed
that aParty could raise an issue about its own compliance, and that
aParty or group of Parties could raise an issue about another
Party’s compliance. CANADA said sufficient evidence should be
provided to support cases. IRAN said only agroup of Parties could
trigger acase of another Party’scompliance. TheEU, CANADA,
CHINA, JAPAN, IRAN, SOUTH AFRICA and the US opposed a
triggering role for the Secretariat. Delegates emphasized itsinfor-
mation gathering function and the need for it to preserve objectivity
and neutrality.

Regarding the Expert Review Teams (ERTS), the EU said the
ERTS' reportswould be automatically submitted to the compliance
committee through the Secretariat. CANADA said the reportswere
thefactual basisthat determined the need for further steps. CHINA,
with IRAN, KUWAIT, BRAZIL and ARGENTINA said it was
inappropriateto give ERTs, asimplefact finding body, atriggering

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © (enb@iisd.org) iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli (pbettelli @iisd.org), Leanne Burney (leanne@iisd.org), Chad Carpenter
(chadc@iisd.org), Angela Churie (churie@I.kth.se), Lavanya Rajamani (lavanya.rajamani @hertford.ox.ac.uk), Chris Spence (spencechris@hotmail.com) and Juliette
Voinov (cedrickohler@msn.com). The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. (pam@iisd.org) and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree (kimo@iisd.org). The
WWW Content Editor is Peter Doran (pfdoran@ecol ogy.u-net.com). Digital engineering by Andrei Henry (ahenry@iisd.ca), Kenneth M. Tong (k8o@interlog.com) and
Richard Stokes (rstokes@iisd.ca). Photography by Leila Mead (leila@interport.net). French translation by Mongi Gadhoum (mongi.gadoum@enb.intl.tn). Logistics
coordinated by PJ. Goldfeder (pjgold14@aol.com). The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada
(through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape, the United Kingdom Department for International
Development (DFID) and the European Commission (DG-XI). Genera Support for the Bulletin during 1999 is provided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment
(BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of
Austria, theMinistries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden,
the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and the Ministry for the Environment in Iceland. Specific funding for this
meeting has been provided by the UNFCCC Secretariat. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at (enb@iisd.org) and at tel: +1-212- 644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD
can be contacted by e-mail at (info@iisd.ca) and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth
Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used
in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing
Editor. Electronic versions are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite image by The
Living Earth, Inc., at http://www.livingearth.com. For information on the ENB, send e-mail to (enb@iisd.org).




Friday, 29 October 1999

Vol. 12 No. 116 Page 2

role. SOUTH AFRICA explained that doing so could endanger the
objectivity of the ERTs. TheUSand AUSTRALIA suggested
guidelinesfor apossiblereferral to the compliance body.

Ontherole of the COP/MOP, many delegates said it should
give policy guidanceto the compliance body. SWITZERLAND,
the RUSSIAN FEDERATION and CHINA proposed that the COP/
MOP should have atriggering role aswell asthe competenceto
decide on the findings of the compliance body. SOUTH AFRICA
expressed concern about due processif the COP/MOP was given
both these functions. BRAZIL suggested that the COP/MOP only
take note of the compliance body report. Several delegatessaid a
triggering role would delay and politicize the process. SAUDI
ARABIA said the COP/MOP should play arole*“at the beginning,
at theend andin themiddle” of the compliance process.

On sources of information, AUSTRALIA and the US said that
due process required the defending party to be ableto present
necessary information and rebut evidence against it. Parties
suggested several sources of information, including: the expert
review teams; outside experts; and intergovernmental organiza-
tions. SAMOA suggested any source the compliance body deemed
appropriate, while IRAN said Parties should be the only source.
BRAZIL said sources should bear responsibility for their informa-
tion.

The EU, with BRAZIL, stressed the need to ensure confidenti-
ality of information submitted in confidence by Parties. SOUTH
AFRICA and SAUDI ARABIA called for clear rulesfor informa-
tion gathering. CHINA sought criteriafor the use of information.
IRAN raised theissue of financing developing countries’ effortsto
provideinformation.

CONTACT GROUPS

ADVERSE EFFECTS: Thiscontact group focused on four
issues: information gaps; the merits of holding another workshop;
thetypes of possible preliminary actionsto betaken to mitigate the
adverse effects of climate change and response measures; and the
manner inwhich Protocol Article 3.14 should be dealt with by the
contact group. Co-chairs Salamat (Iran) and Kjellén (Sweden)
suggested that the discussion’s purpose wasto provide further
information to enable them to propose a draft text to the contact
group.

ANNEX | COMMUNICATIONS: Thiscontact group
continued consideration of the co-chairs’ draft text on guidelines
for reporting other issuesin Annex | communications. Participants
discussed guidelinesfor reporting of : financial resources and tech-
nology transfer; general policy and funding of research and system-
atic observation; and national circumstancesrelevant to GHG
removals. Among theissuesraised in the discussion on financial
resourceswere: whether to provide details of measures or detailed
information of the activities undertaken to implement Annex |
commitments; and how to format the reports. A smaller group will
continue consideration of thetechnical review guidelines.

CAPACITY BUILDING: Delegates considered the co-chair’s
draft proposal on adraft decision on capacity building based on the
G-77/CHINA’swritten proposal and integrating submissionsfrom
the EU and the Umbrella Group. Issuesraised included: the ques-
tion of whether to use the draft asabasisfor negotiation; the fact
that EITS capacity building needs were not being addressed;
concern over the statement whereby capacity buildingisapre-
requisite for meaningful devel oping country participation; provi-
sion for an additional workshop; lack of acountry-driven and
country-specific approach; and the question of whether the submis-
sion of information on capacity building at SB-12 would resultina
recommendation for adecision by COP-6. The co-chairswill
prepare arevised draft on the basis of this discussion and further
submissions.

LUL UCF: Thiscontact group considered adraft schematic
timetable on the process and timing for the analysis of information
provided by the |PCC Specia Report duein 2000 and therelation-
ship of thisreport to adecision-making framework regarding
Protocol Articles 3.3 (net changesin GHG emissionsand

removals), 3.4 (additional human induced activitiesrelated to
changesin GHG emissionsand removals), 7.1 and 7.4 (guidelines
for necessary supplementary information). The group aso
discussed the need for country-specific dataand information, as
well astheir relationship to consideration of the IPCC Special
Report and to adecision-making framework in the context of
Protocol requirements. Questionswereraised on, inter alia: the
need for, purposes and uses of country-specific dataand informa-
tion; datarequirements under specific Protocol provisions; and
types of dataaccording to these provisions. The group will
continue consideration of datain relation to verifiability, transpar-
ency and consistency.

MECHANISMS: Chair Chow (Malaysia) took the participants
through the Synthesis of Parties Proposals on Mechanisms
(FCCC/SB/1999/8). He highlighted certain sections, noted areas of
convergence and divergence, and suggested issues for consider-
ation. The EU, NORWAY and the US suggested ways of consoli-
dating and tightening thetext. On the CDM, the G-77/CHINA
pointed to deficienciesin thetext, including the absence of a
section on “nature and scope” and the lack of a determination of
what the driving force of the CDM should be. On ageneral note,
SAUDI ARABIA reiterated itsreservation on aiming for adraft
negotiating text by SB-12, asthiswas premature. The G-77/
CHINA said technical appendices complicate theissue and
stressed the need to address the technical issues. He also noted the
need for Partiesto meet in their regional groups.

NATIONAL SYSTEMS: Thiscontact group considered draft
conclusions on national systems, adjustments and guidelines under
Protocol Articles5 (methodol ogy), 7 (communication of informa-
tion) and 8 (review of information). The group was unableto agree
onwording for aparagraph on when adjustmentsrelated to
Protocol Article 5.2 (methodol ogy) should be applied. The group
then considered an annex to the draft conclusionsthat setsout a
preliminary list of basic elementsfor national systems under
Protocol Article 5.1 (nationa systemsfor GHG emissionsand
removals). JAPAN presented an aternative draft of the annex,
which he said aimed at greater clarity. A smaller group will
consider this matter and report to the contact group at its next
meeting.

NON-ANNEX | COMMUNICATIONS: Participants consid-
ered adraft text compiling proposals by the EU, the G-77/CHINA
and others. Chair El Ghaouth (Mauritania) noted that he had under-
taken informal consultations and said thetext did not intend to
exclude country positions. He highlighted non-Annex | communi-
cationsasone of the few agendaitemsthat was a candidate for a
COP-5 decision, and adjourned the meeting to hold informal
consultations.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Concern over perceived shortcomings of the GEF in delivering
onitsrole as an operating entity of the FCCC’sfinancia mecha-
nism once again reverberated in the Maritim corridors. A number
of participantscriticized therigid eligibility criteriaby whichthe
GEF interprets and weights proposal s submitted by countries as
unrealistic, and said these criteriacan delay the process of imple-
menting national actions. While somefelt that the problems arise
from inadequate guidance given to the GEF by the COP, others
attributed them to difficultiesin co-ordinating the interests and
mandates of two intergovernmental bodies. |n responseto these
concerns, anumber of participants called for acountry-led review
of the GEF srole so asto facilitate implementation of the FCCC,
particularly by theleast devel oped countries.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY
JWG: The WG on compliancewill meetin Plenary Il at
3:00 pm.
JOINT SBSTA/SBI: SBSTA and SBI will meetin Plenary | at
6:00 pm.
CONTACT GROUPS: Contact groupswill be held
throughout the day. Consult the announcement board for details.



